MORUO DEVELOPMENTS

LIMITED

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



MANTHABISENG CONVETION CENTRE

MASERU - 01 December 2023

INDEX OF CONTENTS

ITEM	PAGE NUMBER
Constitution of Meeting	2
AGM Minutes Approval	5
EGM Minutes Approval	14
4. Chairman's Report	19
 Finances 1 Annual Financial Statements – Year 2023 	23 24



MORUO DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED Registration Number 2007/861

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Notice of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Moruo Developments Limited to be held at the Avani Maseru Convention Hall, Orpen Road, Old Europa, Maseru on Friday 1 December 2023 at 14h00 with the following Agenda and for the purposes set out below:

AGENDA

1. Constitution of Meeting

- 1.1. Welcome Remarks by Chairman
- 1.2. Confirmation of Notice;
- 1.3. Attendance Register Confirmation of Shareholders present including proxies;
- 1.4. Confirmation of Quorum;
- 2. **AGM Minutes Approval**. Minutes of the AGM held at Maseru Avani, Maseru on the 2rd of December 2022 Confirmation and Approval
- 3. **EGM Minutes Approval**. Minutes of the EGM held at Manthabiseng Convention Centre, Maseru on the 4th of August 2023 Confirmation and Approval

4. Chairman's Report

5. Finances

5.1. Annual Financial Statements – Year 2023
The Annual Financial Statements of the Company together with the Report of the Auditors thereon for the year ended 31 March 2023 will be presented to the shareholders.

6. Appointment of Directors

- 6.1. The present directors of the Company are:
 S I Selepe, J R Bothma, A J Bothma, L N Letele, S M Seeiso,
 R A M Yeats, S Montsi, N Mapathe, MD Maqutu, M Vumbukani and I
 Nkama
- 6.2. The Articles of Association of the Company, as amended, allow for a maximum of twelve (12) directors. In terms of the provisions of Article 87 of the Articles of Association, at the Annual General Meeting in every subsequent year one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-third, shall retire from office. Article 89 provides that a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.

The following persons shall retire by rotation as directors:-

A J Bothma, S Montsi and L N Letele

All the retirees have made themselves available for re-election.

6.3 The following persons were also nominated as Directors for consideration by the shareholders:

M L Monaheng

6.4 Report on the Nominations, Voting results and Resolution for Appointment of Directors

7. Matters for Approval

7.1 Audited Financial Statements 2023

FOR CONSIDERATION

8. Auditors

- 8.1 The Auditors of the Company in respect of the financial year to 31 March 2023 have been Moores Rowland (Lesotho).
- 8.2 Recommendation for appointment of Auditors.

FOR NOTING

9 Un-issued Share Capital

It is proposed that the remaining un-issued share capital of the Company be placed in the hands of the directors for further allotment and issue.

FOR CONSIDERATION

10 Further business

The meeting may transact such further or other business as may come properly before the meeting and any adjournment thereof and as allowed by the Chairman.

By Order of the Board.

Tiisetso Sello-Mafatle COMPANY SECRETARY Maseru, Lesotho

17 November 2023



MORUO DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

REGISTRATION NUMBER 2007/861

MINUTES OF THE 14TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF MORUO DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED HELD ON FRIDAY THE 2ND DECEMBER 2022

HELD ON FRIDAY THE 2ND DECEMBER 2022 AT AVANI MASERU CONVENTION HALL, ORPEN ROAD, OLD EUROPA AT 14H00

In Attendance: AGM (Shareholders List Noted)

Invitees: Moruo Developments Management

Recording: Company Secretary - Tiisetso Mafatle (TSM) - Sello Mafatle Attorneys

The meeting commenced at 14H10

AGENDA ITEMS AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE MEETING

1. AGM Governance

- 1.1 Notice of Retirement of Chairman
 - Company Secretary called the AGM to order at 14H10 for the Chairman of the AGM to commence the proceedings.
 - ➤ The AGM was notified of the retirement of JR LETSOELA as Director and Chairman.
 - SI SELEPE was introduced to the AGM as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and accordingly Chairman of the AGM in terms of Article 55 of the Constitution/Articles of Association.
- 1.2 The Chairman of the AGM in terms of the Constitution/Chairman of the Board of Directors (Article 55).
- 1.3 Welcome Remarks by Chairman

Chairman welcomed all present at the AGM and thanked the Board of Directors in having the confidence in him to lead the Board of Directors as its Chairman. Chair thanked the AGM for their attendance. The attendance of the Directors present at the AGM was noted.

Chair thanked Ntate Joseph Ralitapole Letsoela for his leadership and service to the Company and wished him well.

2. Constitution of meeting

- 2.1 Confirmation of Notice
- Notice convening the meeting was confirmed.
- 2.2 Attendance Register Confirmation of Shareholders present including proxies
- ➤ The attendance register was duly noted and the AGM was declared quorate to proceed with the meeting.

3. AGM Minutes Approval

3.1 Minutes of the AGM held at Avani Maseru Convention Hall, Orpen Road, Old Europa, Maseru on Friday 2nd December 2022 at 14H00 were approved as a true and correct of the proceedings of the meeting.

Proposer: Makoekoe Khatleli **Seconder**: Sebolelo Molete

- **3**.2 Matters Arising from the Previous AGM
- 3.2.1 Consideration for paid parking bays
 - The AGM had raised a concern that the parking area is considerably occupied by those who leave their vehicles at the Pioneer Mall for the whole day to go their respective work places; hence a need to consider payment for parking.
 - Director AJ Bothma reminded the AGM of Agenda Item 5.3 (i) of the AGM Minutes and advised the AGM that the response is still valid a year later that:
 - ➤ The current parking model is instrumental to profitability of the Mall. Further that, other Tenants Sub-Leasehold Agreements are only possible through free parking.
 - Lastly, the Parking Equipment is not cost effective in the short and long term.

3.2.2 Possible New Projects/Way Forward

➤ The matter was deferred to the Chairman's Report to consider best possible alternatives for the growth of Moruo Developments business and whether the loan repayment may be accelerated and or re-financing sought for investment expansion.

4. Chairman's Report

The Chairman's Report as circulated to the Shareholders was also in Sesotho and highlighted the following:

- 4.1 Trading Climate
 - Moruo Developments Limited flagship Centre Pioneer Mall completed its 12th full financial year of trading still under the COVID-19 restrictions for the second (2nd) year.
 - (ii) The COVID-19 and the Russia and Ukraine war significantly put pressure on cash flows as both affected trade, influenced inflation and placed considerable strain on commodity prices.
 - (iii) Despite the challenges, the Company has managed the highest debenture interest declaration and subsequent payment to-date.
 - (iv) The Centre has a 100% tenancy.

4.2 Political Landscape

➤ The National Elections were held on the 7th October 2022 in Lesotho; and this impacted trade as the uncertain political and economic climate discouraged spending by the consumers and stagnated business expansion and investments.

4.3 Financial Performance

➤ The Company's financial performance and position has improved significantly, as the economy recovers gradually.

(i)	Key figures	2022	2021
	Turnover	M52.2m	M45.3m
	Expenses	M25.9m	M23.3m

(ii) After the finance charges a surplus of M15.9m was achieved in 2022.

4.4 Staff Complement

- The staff complement of management, administration and services is 147 at present; a loyal and competent team.
- ➤ The staff canteen is now well established and providing one meal per day for members of staff on duty, which has contributed towards greater work performance by the Staff.

4.5 Way Forward/Investment Outlook

- ➤ The AGM revisited the question by LEHLOHONOLO MOETI (LM) who had asked on what the Board is doing to improve the Company investment portfolio so the company is a legacy for future generations.
- Chair outlined the following:
 - (i) The two(2) main sources of funds in any business are the shareholders' loans and long-term debt.
 - (ii) During times of uncertainty, it is prudent to reduce the debt as much as possible.
 - (iii) The greater the reduction of debt, ultimately, the greater the cash available to the Shareholders.
 - (iv) It is therefore an on-going balance and cautionary exercise for the Board of Directors to find a happy medium between the reduction of the debt and the reward to the shareholders.
 - (v) The Director have a full confidence in the continued premiership of the shopping mall in Maseru and surrounds, as a shopping Mall of choice.

4.6 Governance

- The Board of Directors is continuously monitoring the affairs of the Company through the Executive Committee under Mr. Andre Bothma, the Managing Director.
- Once again, Chair thanked Mr. Joseph Ralitapole Letsoela for his service to the Company as a Director and Chairman, who retired in September 2022. The Board of Directors have conveyed its message of good wishes to him.
- ➤ Chair thanked his fellow Directors for their dedication to the best practice corporate governance, and thanked the Mall Management for their steadfast efforts to ensure the success of Pioneer Mall in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

5. Finances

5.1 Annual Financial Statements

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 as circulated to the Shareholders were presented by Ms. Mabasotho Leuta, with the following highlighted:

- ➤ Turnover of M52.2m was achieved compared to M45.3m in 2021.
- A surplus of M15.9, was achieved in 2022.
- Debenture Interest payment of M8,001,465.39 was declared before withholding tax
- ➤ The reporting also noted the global trading climate that impacts revenues of the company.

- Source of Revenue
 - (i) Rentals
 - (ii) Costs Recoveries e.g. electricity
 - (iii) Renting out stalls and advertising space
 - (iv) The net fair value of the company is M365,200,000m

RESOLUTION 1: 5.1

Approval of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022. Following a recommendation of the Board of Directors of Moruo Developments Limited the AGM **resolved** to approve the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Proposer: Lehlohonolo Moeti **Seconder**: Lerato Ralebese

5.2 DEBENTURE INTEREST

(i) Notices

Publications as circulated to the Shareholders: Public Eye – Friday 14th October 2022 and the Lesotho Times – Thursday 20th October 2022.

- (ii) Ratification of Acts of Directors and Cash Payment of Debenture Interest.
- (iii) Resolution Approval

The AGM **resolved** to approve and ratify the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of Moruo Developments Limited on the 30th September 2022 in terms of Clause 9.1 of the Debenture Terms and Conditions that debenture interest to the amount of M8,001,465.3 (before Withholding Tax) be declared.

Proposer: Mpho Vumbukani **Seconder**: Lerato Khomari

5.3 GENERAL AND QUESITION AND ANSWER SESSION

➤ LEBOELA LEBETE:

The assets of the company that are development assets, what are they? A response was that they were incurred in the development and they are intangible assets that have been capitalised and every year they lose value through amortisation.

- > TSEPO LETSIE AND LEHLOHONOLO MOETI:
 - What is the difference between the debenture interest and dividends and what are Linked Units? The AGM was taken through the fundamental differences being that with debenture interest the Shareholders are paid before tax and therefore has tax planning advantages.
- The AGM noted that Shareholders who wish to be appraised further on the issue of debenture interest and dividends should visit the Management Office for orientation and/or make arrangements with the Centre office for the appraisal.
- ➤ LEBOELA LEBETE: Representing Sekhametsi Investment Consortium Limited expressed that he is in favour of continued declaration of debenture interest by the Company.

➤ LEHLOHONOLO MOETI AND OTHERS:

There was generally a differing opinion that the Shareholders are looking into the investment growth of the Company and this was expressed by the general clapping of hands to express consensus.

6. Appointment of Directors

6.1 For Noting

The Directors are:

SI SELEPE

JR BOTHMA

AJ BOTHMA

LN LETELE

SM SEEISO

RAM YEATS

S MONTSI

N MAPHATHE

I PETERSEN

MD MAQUTU

6.2 Retirement, Rotation and Election of Directors

6.2.1

- ➤ The Articles of Association of the Company, as amended, allow for a maximum of twelve (12) directors.
- ➤ In terms of provisions of Article <u>87</u> of the Articles of Association, at the AGM in every subsequent year one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three(3) or a multiple of three(3), then the number nearest to one-third, shall retire from office.
- > Article 89 provides that a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
- (i) The following persons shall retire by rotation as directors:

I PETERSEN,

SI SELEPE.

N MAPHATHE and MD MAQUTU

(ii) The following persons were also nominated as Directors for consideration by the Shareholders:

ML VUMBUKANI,

IZ NKAMA and LD MOETI

(iv) Following the Nominations which were closed on the 18th December 2022, Attorney NTLATLAPA MOSAE presented the results:

6.2.2

- > 81% of the Shareholders voted.
- ➤ There were seven(7) Nominations and the Shareholders were to nominate 5.
- The top five results were as follows:

SI SELEPE - 81%

ML VUMBUKANI – 64%

IZ NKAMA – 64%

N MAPHATHE - 63%

MD MAQUTU - 63%

RESOLUTION

The AGM is therefore called to consider the re-appointment and the appointment of the following persons who made themselves available for election:

The AGM **resolved** to elect

SI SELEPE

MD MAQUTU

ML VUMBUKANI

IZ NKAMA

N MAPHATHE

as Directors of the Company.

Proposer: Sam Montsi Seconder: Leboela Lebete

Director Sam Montsi on behalf of the Board of Directors conveyed the following message to the AGM after a brief overview of his professional and business profile:

- ➤ He emphasised and cautioned the Shareholders to nominate and appoint experienced people with solid track record in business.
- > That being business minded is important so the Board is populated with likeminded individuals.
- That in successful business enterprises, the Board advises the Shareholders in the nominations of its Board so there is positive value-add for the success of the business.
- Importantly, cautioned the Shareholders not to kill a working model that has proved to work in the best interest of the company.
 (Copy of Director Montsi speech to be circulated to the AGM)

7. Director's Sitting Fee

7.1 The AGM at its sitting on Friday 3rd December 2021 at Agenda Item 7 at page 4 of 5 passed a Resolution that :

"The AGM resolved to approve the review of the Board Sitting Fee in the year 2021/2022 and any adjustment to be part of the budgetary process.

Proposer: Sebolelo Molefe Seconder: Sefoloko Ntsene

7.2 RESOLUTION

- The AGM noted that the Directors' Sitting Fee has not changed for thirteen (13) years.
- ➤ The Board has four (4) Ordinary Sittings per financial year.
- ➤ The AGM resolved to approve and ratify the recommendation made by Board of Directors at its meeting of Friday 2nd December 2022 at 07H30 that the Sitting Fee be M9,000.00 for the Directors and M12,000.00 for the Chairman.

Proposer: Lehlohonolo Moeti **Seconder**: Motsabi Mafatle

8. Matters for Approval

- 8.1 Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022 Approved at Agenda Item 5.1
- 8.2 Debenture Interest Payment Approved at Agenda Item 5.2
- 8.3 Directors' Sitting Fee Approved at Agenda Item 7.2

9. Auditors – For Noting

- 9.1 The Auditors of the Company in respect of the financial year ended 31st March 2021 have been Moores Rowland (Lesotho).
- 9.2 Moores Rowland (Lesotho) have been appointed for a period of three(3) years until the financial period ending March 2023. Approval consideration is based on the AGM approval at the AGM held on the 27th November 2020 at Victory Hall, c/o Airport & Majara Road, Moshoeshoe II, Maseru.

10. Un-issued Share Capital

The AGM noted that the remaining un-issued share capital of the Company be continued to be placed in the hands of the directors for further allotment and issue.

11. Further Business

- 11.1 The AGM may transact such further or other business as may come properly before the meeting and any adjournment thereof and as allowed by the Chairman.
 - The following matters were in addition to those previously noted in the AGM Minutes were noted:
 - Hardcopies of the AGM Pack were made available for the Shareholders who preferred them as requested at the AGM of Friday 3rd December 2021.
 - Directors' Nominations were presented in advance of the AGM and voting closed on the 18th December 2022.
 - Company Secretary announced that:
 - (i) There are still Share Certificates that are yet to be collected from the Centre Management Office.
 - (ii) Shareholders are to update their records at the Management Office, importantly cellular phone numbers, E-Mail addresses and bank accounts.
 - (iii) 3.78% of the Debenture Interest Payment is still due as bank accounts proved to be in-active or not available.

12.	Chairman thanked al closed at 16H37. Date of Next AGM: 1	I for their inva		s and the AGM was de	clared
	Dated this	of	2023		
	Signed (Chairman of	the AGM Fu	II Names and Signa	 ature)	



MORUO DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED Registration No. 2007/861

MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING (EGM) HELD ON FRIDAY 4TH AUGUST 2023 AT MANTHABISENG CONVENTION CENTRE AT 14H00

Notice Convening the Extraordinary General Meeting:

Bulk sms: 14th July 2023; The Reporter Newspaper 14th July 2023, Reminders: Informative Newspaper 25th July 2023; Emails 25 July 2023;

Harvest FM 1 August 2023; Mo-Africa FM 2 August 2023.

In Attendance: EGM (Shareholders List)

Present: Moruo Developments – Board of Directors
Moruo Developments - Management

Recording: Company Secretary - Tiisetso Sello - Mafatle - Sello - Mafatle Attorneys

The meeting commenced at 14H00

AGENDA ITEMS, OPENING AND PROCEEDINGS OF THE MEETING

1. EGM GOVERNANCE, CONSTITUTION

- 1.1 Registration commenced at 13H00
- 1.2 Company Secretary called the EGM to order at 14H00 for the Chairman of the Board of Directors who is also Chairman of Shareholders Meetings to commence the proceedings.
 - ➤ SI SELEPE (SIS) was introduced to the Shareholders and it was noted that as the Chairman of the Board of Directors, he is also Chairman of the EGM. Reference: Article 55 of the Articles of Association registered 1st November 2007.
- 1.3 Attendance Register (present and apologies Confirmation of Shareholders present including proxies)
 - > The attendance register was duly noted and the proxies announced before the EGM and the EGM was declared quorate to proceed with the meeting.
 - Company Secretary handed over to the Chairman to proceed with the meeting.
- 1.4 Opening Prayer and Confirmation of Notice Calling the EGM.
 - Chair called all to prayer and after the prayer; the Notice convening the Extraordinary General Meeting was confirmed.

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

2.1 The Agenda was adopted with no changes.

Proposer: MAKASE NYAPISI (MN)

Seconder: MOHLOMI RANTEKOA (MR)

- 2.2 Matters Raised And Answers
 - (i) Selikane Selikane (SS) took note that at Agenda Item 2.1; 10 Year Income Statement Forecast 2023/24 to 2032/33 of Moruo Developments Limited does not inform the shareholders of the historical analysis of where the company comes from with reference to historic information pre 2023/24.

 Response: Chairman highlighted that the analysis is the first of its kind and made
 - to highlight the milestones reached by Moruo Developments and therefore a part of what the shareholder has asked about is covered in EGM presentation, including M66,6million that has been paid to the shareholders to date.
 - (ii) Tseliso Ntabe, (Proxy representing Sekhametsi Investment Consortium Limited) raised the following matters:

- ➤ That the Chairman of the Board of Directors is not in terms of the Articles of Association Chairman of the Board of Directors and stated that the AGM (EGM) picks and (appoints) their own Chairman.
- > Secondly, that the EGM/Shareholders do not have copies of the Annual Financial Statements (AFS).

Chairman's response:

- (i) About his Chairmanship; Company Secretary to provide information to ensure compliance at the next Shareholders meeting.
- (ii) About the Annual Financial Statements: the rationale behind Agenda Item 3 Matters For Information And Noting: is to ensure all Financial Matters necessary for the Annual Financial Statements are included, hence notification for Information to the Shareholders.

At 14H25 Chairman handed over to MABASOTHO LEUTA (LM) to present the Income Statement 10 Year Forecast 2022/23 to 2032/33 and Debenture Interest Forecast 2024 to 2033.

3. MATTERS FOR INFORMATION AND NOTING

- 3.1 10 Year Income Statements Forecast 2023/24 to 2032/33 of Moruo Developments Limited
 - The Investment Portfolio of Moruo Developments and Income Statement 10 Year Forecast and Debenture Interest as enclosed in the EGM Pack was noted for presentation by MABASOTHO LEUTA (LM), with the following highlighted:

(i) Financial Year Ending March (M – Maloti)

2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030	2031	2032	2033
58 345	64 571	69 342	73 407	77 713	82 161	86 874	91	97	102 771
154	360	250	491	307	190	275	868	161	249
							703	621	

(ii) Debenture Interest (M – Maloti)

2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	2030	2031	2032	2033
12 000	14 000	18 000	19 000	20 000	21 000	34 462	38	42	46 000
000	000	000	000	000	000	800	462	462	000
							800	800	

The following were highlighted that:

- (iii) After completion of Phase 4 in 2024, total revenue will increase by 11% with the rental escalation rate averaged at 5.5%.
- (iv) The total revenue to operating expenses show a healthy variance of 53%.
- (v) Pioneer Mall is at 100% occupancy with 92 (Ninety two) tenants and 1,000 (one thousand) employees in Pioneer Mall.

(vi) Since the Mall operations in 2009 the Gross Lettable Area has grown in this manner:

2009	2012	2015	2023 -2024
Phase 1	Phase 2	Phase 3	Phase 4
GLA: 8 229m ²	GLA 14 616m ²	GLA 22 977m ²	GLA 24 000m ²

- (vii)There are 1115 (One Thousand One Hundred and Fifteen) Shareholders and M66.6m in Debenture Interest paid to the Shareholders to date.
- (viii) The value of the Pioneer Mall Property is currently M396m (Three Hundred and Ninety-Six Million Maloti)

The presentation ended at 14H54

3.1.2 Questions, Matters Raised and Answers.

Chair thanked MABASOTHO LEUTA (ML) for her presentation and invited questions and comments.

- (i) Chair highlighted that the summary given provides a picture of how much the Company has grown; and a healthy outlook into the future.
- (ii) BEKERE NAMANE (BN):
 - The Shareholder raised a concern that why is money spend on a hired place when Moruo Developments has own premises.
 - Response: Holding Shareholders Meetings at Pioneer Mall inconveniences the Customers and it becomes a costly exercise as shops will lose revenues due to space unavailability.
- (iii) MATUMELO MAHLATSA(MM) asked for an explanation of what Debenture is and asked for illustration to explain debenture.
 - Response: MABASOTHO LEUTA(ML) highlighted the tax benefits of debenture interest to the Company as paid before payment of tax and therefore a deductible expense.
- (iv) MPHI EZEKIEL MOLELI (MEM) and LEHLOHONOLO MOETI (LM) reminded the Shareholders that the EGM was for the Approval of 2023 Debenture Interest
 - Cash Payment and Debenture Allotment/Split Proposal
 - 3.2 Pioneer Mall Performance
 - ➤ The EGM noted the performance of Pioneer Mall healthy growth and the Chairman highlighted that the healthy growth is due to the Board of Directors adherence to good and best practice Corporate Governance, particularly under expert leadership of 1st Chairman Mr SAM MONTSI (SM), 2nd Chairman Mr JOSEPH LETSOELA(JL) and the current Chairman SEBEHELA SELEPE (SIS).
 - 3.3 Phase 4 Expansion to Accommodate New Tenancy
 - ➤ The report of forecasted 10 Year Income Statement beginning 2024 when Phase 4 is completed was noted and the expansion floor plans as included in the EGM Pack were noted.

4. MATTERS FOR APPROVAL

- 4.1 Approval of 2023 Debenture Interest Cash Payment and Debenture Allotment/Split Proposal.
 - > The EGM noted the Background to the request for approval as included in the EGM Pack with the following highlighted:
 - (i) That, following the comments and feedback from Shareholders at the Moruo Developments Limited AGM held on 2nd December 2022, the Board of Directors have arrived at a solution which will deliver value to the Shareholders, in addition to meeting certain required of other major stakeholders.
 - (ii) The Board has **approved** the below as a strategy to address the concerns of Shareholders:
 - The Shareholders: provide consistent increasing value to our Shareholders. In Financial Year 2023, this value takes the form of a combination of cash payout of debenture interest and issue of linked units.
 - Tenants and the shopping public: Ensure the long-term growth and sustainability of the Mall through regular updates and renovations.
 - Revenue Services Lesotho: Tax compliant, yet as tax efficient as possible.
 - (iii) Matter for consideration and approval by the Extraordinary General Meeting. Debenture Interest:
 - That, M18 463m debenture interest be and I hereby declared for financial year 2023 AND that M8, 000 000 (M8m) is payable in cash on the 1st (first) week of October 2023 AND the balance converted to Linked Units at a price of M399.90 per debenture and M0.10 per share.
 - That, the monies not balancing to a complete Linked Units will be paid to the Shareholder.
 - That, any liabilities to withholding tax to be paid from the gross debenture interest as declared above.

 That, it be noted that a cash balance of around M5.2million has been used as a minimum balance of free cash to retain in the business.

MOHLOMI RANTEKOA (MR) reiterated that the EGM was for the Approval of Debenture Interest – Cash Payment and Debenture Allotment/Split Proposal and that Shareholders vote on the Matters for Approval as presented.

4.2 EGM Resolutions

Matter for consideration and approval by the Extraordinary General Meeting. Debenture Interest:

The EGM **Resolved** to approve the following **Resolutions**:

- 4.2.1 That, M18 463m debenture interest be and I hereby declared for financial year 2023 AND that M8, 000 000 (M8m) is payable in cash on the 1st (first) week of October 2023 AND the balance converted to Linked Units at a price of M399.90 per debenture and M0.10 per share.
- 4.2.2 That, the monies not balancing to a complete Linked Units will be paid to the Shareholder.
- 4.2.3 That, any liabilities to withholding tax to be paid from the gross debenture interest as declared above.
- 4.2.4 That, it be noted that a cash balance of around M5.2million has been used as a minimum balance of free cash to retain in the business.

Proposer: KHOARANE KHOARANE (KK) Seconder: RETHABILE SHALE (RS)

5 **CLOSURE**

- 5.2 Date of the 15th Annual General Meeting (AGM) 1st December 2023 at 14H00. Venue to be advised on Notice Publications.
 - ➤ The Shareholders were cordially reminded to update their records at the Centre Management Office Pioneer Mall to ensure payout of outstanding debenture interest of previous years.
 - ➤ LEBOHANG NTSINYI (LN) thanked the Board of Directors and Management on a well presented EGM Pack and it was noted that the EGM Packs should likewise be availed to the Shareholders before the date of the EGM.

The National Anthem was sung and the Chairman thanked all Shareholders for their invaluable contributions, and thanked the Board of Directors and Management for paying attention to Shareholders matters.

Chairman of the EGM declared the EGM officially closed at 15H39.

Dated this _	day of	20
Signed:		
J	Chairman of the Board of Directors	
	SEBEHELA I. SELEPE (SIS)	





LIMITED

PO Box 1564, Maseru 100 Tel: +266 2231-1216 Registration No. 2007/861 E-Mail:admin@pioneer.co.ls

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 2023

It is with pleasure that your Board of Directors reports to you, its shareholders on the activities of your Company for the past year, being the financial year ending 31 March 2023.

The Pioneer Mall completed its 13th full financial year of trading successfully, despite a difficult local trading climate; Average occupancy was 100% during the year under review. Pioneer Mall is currently 98% let, because of the ongoing phase 4 expansion.

Financial Performance

The pandemic has had a great negative impact on the financial turnover of Pioneer Mall. However, costs have been contained by stringent control measures which have been diligently implemented by management. After Covid pandemic the Company's financial position has improved significantly, as the economy recovers gradually.

Key figures: 2023 2022

Turnover: M 56.9 million M 52.2 million

Expenses: M 57.4 million M 47.4 million

The performance in 2023 is after a Debenture interest payout of M18,4 million.

Our healthy bank balance which is supported by excellent cash collections and continued regular good management of our costs has put us in the favourable position of being able to make a cash pay-out of M7.8 million in Debenture Interest after tax in October 2023. This is in addition to the debentures issued which did not have a cash effect but added M10,6 million in value to Shareholders. Subsequent to this payout Moruo Developments will remain with a balance that will still be in excess of one month rental income

Moruo Developments still has ample reserves which will be used to make significant changes to some of the shop layouts in the coming year due to necessity and demand.

Staff

The staff complement which include management, administration and services is 153 at present, a loyal and competent team. The staff canteen is currently providing one meal per day per shift for members on duty, which contributes towards greater work performance by the staff.



LIMITED

PO Box 1564, Maseru 100 Tel: +266 2231-1216 Registration No. 2007/861 E-Mail:admin@pioneer.co.ls

Phase 4 Expansion



The mall is expanding by 1816 Square meters of which

Incredible connections will occupy 458 square meters

Pep Home will occupy 330 square meters

Tekkie Town will occupy 218 square meters

Mr Price Home will occupy 374 square meter

Woolworths Lesotho will also increase their shop by 436 Square meters

The Way Forward

The Board of Directors has a responsibility to the shareholders and strive to achieve between growth of the business and the reward to the shareholders for their investment and faith in the success of the business of the Company. This apparent conflict becomes even more of a dilemma when the Board of Directors have to consider the long-term wellbeing of the company as being paramount, as this ultimately determines the reward to the very same shareholders in the future.



LIMITED

PO Box 1564, Maseru 100 Tel: +266 2231-1216 Registration No. 2007/861 E-Mail:admin@pioneer.co.ls

The Board will consider opportunities to grow the business beyond Pioneer Mall.

Finance

Subsequent to the financial year end Moruo Developments has been able to secure transformational finance from Standard Lesotho Bank which will take this business to the next level in becoming a Lesotho Property Development and Management company with a portfolio of properties, as opposed to the one property we currently own and manage.

We have successfully secured funding to the tune of M220 million with Standard Lesotho Bank which is split into three components, namely,

- 1. The current Loan with Nedbank Lesotho for Pioneer Mall, M110 million
- 2. Funding for the development of Phase 4 of Pioneer Mall, M31 million, for reputable tenants such as Pep Home, Incredible Connection, Mr Price Home, plus additional floor space for Woolworths.
- 3. Additional available funding for Management to research, explore and identify value added property opportunities with a view to continually increasing Shareholder Value, M79 million. This is seen by the Board as a two year project as the search will be detailed and selective to ensure the correct developments are brought into our portfolio.

The Board is excited by the Development and Strategic funding, as it firstly shows the confidence our financiers have in our business, and secondly, this quick access to funds is expected to provide the springboard to take Moruo Developments to be a property portfolio development and management company with multiple properties in its stable.

Governance

The Board of Directors monitors the affairs of the Company closely itself and through its Executive Committee under the Managing Director, Mr André Bothma.

I record my thanks to my fellow Directors for their dedication to the good governance of the Company during these trying times, and to the Centre Management for their steadfast efforts to ensure the success of Pioneer Mall and therefore the Company in the interests of its shareholders.

SI SELEPE

Chairman (Non-executive)

December 2023



5.1

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT YEAR 2023

(Registration Number I2007/861) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Moores Rowland

Chartered Accountants (Lesotho)

Praxity
AFFILIATE
GLOBAL ALLIANCE OF
INDEPENDENT FIRMS

Moruo Developments Limited (Registration Number I2007/861)

(Registration Number I2007/861) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Index

	Page
General Information	1
Directors' Responsibilities and Approval	2
Directors' Report	3 - 4
Independent Auditor's Report	5 - 6
Statement of Financial Position	7
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income	8
Statement of Changes in Equity	9
Statement of Cash Flows	10
Accounting Policies	11 - 17
Notes to the Financial Statements	18 - 23
The supplementary information presented does not form part of the Financial Statements and is unaudited:	
Detailed Income Statement	24

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

General Information

Country of Incorporation and Domicile

Kingdom of Lesotho

Registration Number

12007/861

Nature of business and principal activities

Development and Management of commercial

properties.

Board of Directors

S Selepe (Chairman)

A J Bothma
J R Bothma
L N Letele
M Maphathe
M D Maqutu
S Montsi
Ms Seeiso
R A M Yeats
I Nkama
M Vumbukani

Registered Office

10 Lioli Road

Industrial Area

Maseru

Business Address

Pioneer Mall Pioneer Road

Maseru

Postal Address

P. O. Box 1564

Maseru 100

Bankers

Nedbank Lesotho Ltd

Company Secretary

Sello-Mafatle Attorneys Marie Sello Office Park

Assisi Road Maseru West

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The Directors are required by the Lesotho Companies Act of 2011 to maintain adequate accounting records, and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Lesotho Companies Act of 2011. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Board of Directors acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the Company and places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Board of Directors to meet these responsibilities, the Board of Directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Company's business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the Company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. Based on forecasts and available cash resources the Board of Directors has no reason to believe that the Company will not be a going concern in the foreseeable future. The annual financial statements support the viability of the Company.

The annual financial statements have been audited by the independent auditing firm, Moores Rowland (Lesotho), who have been given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of the shareholders, the Board of Directors and committees of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors believe that all representations made to the independent auditor during the audit were valid and appropriate. The external auditor's audit report is presented on pages 5 to 6.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 7 to 23, and the supplementary information set out on page 24 which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis, were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on the concern basis and the concern basis are concern basis.

S Selepe Chairman A J Bothma Managing Director

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Directors' Report

The Board of Directors presents its report for the year ended 31 March 2023.

1. Review of activities

The business of the Company is the development, management and operation of commercial properties, which presently consists of the Pioneer Shopping Mall, Pioneer Road, Maseru.

The operating results and state of affairs of the Company are fully set out in the attached annual financial statements and do not, in our opinion, require any further comment.

2. Post balance sheet events

The Directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year that would have a material effect on the financial statements.

3. Authorised and issued share capital

No changes were approved or made to the authorised or issued share capital of the Company during the year under review.

4. Debenture interest

Debenture interest of M64.1406 per linked unit (2022: M27.8049) is recommended by the Directors for the year.

5. Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year under review, and up to the date of this report is as follows:

<u>Nationality</u>	<u>Appointed</u>	Resigned
Lesotho	16.08.2013	
Lesotho	01.11.2007	
Lesotho	01.11.2007	
South African	11.01.2010	
Lesotho	09.12.2016	
Lesotho	09.12.2016	
South African	06.08.2008	
Lesotho	28.04.2017	
Lesotho	26.11.2010	
Lesotho	02.12.2022	
Lesotho	02.12.2022	
Lesotho		02.12.2022
South African		02.12.2022
	Lesotho Lesotho South African Lesotho South African Lesotho South African Lesotho Lesotho Lesotho Lesotho Lesotho Lesotho Lesotho	Lesotho 16.08.2013 Lesotho 01.11.2007 Lesotho 01.11.2007 South African 11.01.2010 Lesotho 09.12.2016 Lesotho 09.12.2016 South African 06.08.2008 Lesotho 28.04.2017 Lesotho 26.11.2010 Lesotho 02.12.2022 Lesotho 02.12.2022 Lesotho 02.12.2022

6. Directors' interest in contracts

During the financial year, no contracts were entered into which Directors or officers of the Company had an interest and which significantly affected the business of the Company.

7. Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The Board of Directors believe that the Company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Directors' Report

The Board of Directors has satisfied itself that the Company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The Directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the Company. The Directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the Company.

8. Events after the reporting period

The Directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to date of this report.

9. Secretary

The Company's designated secretary is Sello-Mafatle Attorneys.

10. Independent Auditors

Moores Rowland (Lesotho) were the independent auditors for the year under review.

Moores Rowland

Chartered Accountants (Lesotho)

Office address: Sentinel Park United Nations Road Maseru Telephone Email Web Int.web +266) 22 313929 mrl@mooresrowland.co.ls mooresrowlandlesotho.com Mail P O Box 1252 Maseru 100 Lesotho

Independent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of Moruo Developments Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Moruo Developments Limited, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 31st March 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, together with a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set-out on pages 7 to 23.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31st March 2023, its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Lesotho Companies Act 2011.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B) (IESBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Lesotho. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in Lesotho. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our unqualified opinion.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors' responsibilities and approval, the Directors' report and the Detailed Income Statement set out on page 24 as required by the Lesotho Companies Act of 2011. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 18 of 2011, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the director either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.



Directors: A S McAlpine, R 'Nyane, C Makoala

Moores Rowland (Pty), a company established under the laws of Lesotho, is an affiliate member of Praxity, AISBL, a global alliance of independent firms.



Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
 error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
 misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
 forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
 appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
 the company's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the director.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the director's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
 disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Moores Rowland

Moores Rowland Lesotho Partner: Chabeli Makoala Registered Auditors (LIA) Sentinel Park, Maseru 100 18 October 2023

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Financial Position

Figures in M	Notes	2023	2022
Assets			
Non-current assets Investment property	2	390,446,036	361,421,951
Property, plant and equipment	3	4,964,507	4,919,252
Development Assets	4	4,291,885	5,271,395
Total non-current assets	7	399,702,428	371,612,598
Total Hon-current assets		333,702,420	371,012,330
Current assets			
Trade and other receivables	5	1,128,224	1,069,482
Taxation		1,308,097	168,367
Cash and cash equivalents	6	10,767,879	13,083,714
Total current assets		13,204,200	14,321,563
Total assets		412,906,628	385,934,161
Equity and liabilities			
Equity			
Share capital	7	28,772	28,772
Share premium	8	24,223,250	24,223,250
Debentures	9	115,058,828	115,058,828
Retained income		105,143,111	83,789,039
Total equity		244,453,961	223,099,889
Nian annual Cabillata			
Non-current liabilities Long-term loans	10	102 222 515	442 000 000
Deferred tax liabilities	11	103,322,515	113,686,868
Total non-current liabilities	11	29,760,824	22,468,592
Total non-current naplities		133,083,339	136,155,460
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	12	23,503,786	14,899,383
Short-term loans	10	11,865,542	11,779,429
Total current liabilities		35,369,328	26,678,812
Total equity and liabilities		412,906,628	385,934,161
		N	

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Figures in M	Notes	2023	2022
Revenue	13	56,880,631	52,241,713
Operating expenses	14	(28,269,912)	(25,875,287)
(Loss) / Profit before finance charges		28,610,719	26,366,426
Finance charges	15	(29,117,455)	(21,519,587)
(Loss) / Profit before taxation		(506,736)	4,846,839
Income tax expense	16	(7,129,684)	(1,211,709)
(Loss) / profit for the year		(7,636,420)	3,635,130
Other comprehensive income			
IFRS fair value adjustment (resulting from property revaluation)	17	21,742,873	5,470,628
Total comprehensive income		14,106,453	9,105,758

Moruo Developments Limited (Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Changes in Equity

	Issued	Share		Retained	
Figures in M	capital	premium	Debentures	income	Total
Balance as at 31 March 2021	26,038	24,223,250	104,127,162	74,683,281	203,059,731
Linked units issue	2,734	\ -	10,931,666	₹	10,934,400
Profit for the year	14	945	9	3,635,130	3,635,130
Other comprehensive income		7,7 0	- 	5,470,628	5,470,628
Balance at 31 March 2022	28,772	24,223,250	115,058,828	83,789,039	223,099,889
Loss for the year		-	_	(7,636,420)	(7,636,420)
Other comprehensive income	-	*		28,990,497	28,990,497
Balance at 31 March 2023	28,772	24,223,250	115,058,828	105,143,111	244,453,961
N	otes 7	8	9		

Moruo Developments Limited (Registration Number 12007/861)

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Statement of Cash Flows

otatement of oasii i lows			
Figures in M	Note	2023	2022
Cash flows from operations			
Profit/(Loss) before tax		(506,736)	4,846,839
Adjustments		(300,730)	4,040,033
Adjustments for finance costs		29,117,455	21,519,586
Adjustments for amortisation of development assets		1,057,097	1,317,852
Adjustments for depreciation		999,273	797,585
Movement in trade and other receivables		(58,742)	840,496
Movement in trade and other payables		8,604,403	(2,084,388)
Movement in short-term loans		86,111	(277,507)
Total adjustments to reconcile (loss) / profit		39,805,597	22,113,624
Net cash flows from operations		39,298,861	26,960,463
Interest paid		(29,117,455)	(21,519,586)
Income taxes paid		(977,182)	(9,191)
Net cash flows from operating activities		9,204,224	5,431,686
Cash flows used in investing activities			
Investment assets		(33,588)	
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		(1,044,529)	(3,724,718)
Development assets		(77,588)	(3,724,710)
Cash flows used in investing activities		(1,155,706)	(3,724,718)
•			, , ,
Cash flows used in financing activities			40.004.400
Linked units rights issue		-	10,934,400
Long-term loans		(10,364,353)	(11,779,429)
Cash flows used in financing activities		(10,364,353)	(845,029)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents		(2,315,835)	861,939
Hot (acordase) / morease in cash and cash equivalents		(2,313,033)	001,535
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year		13,083,714	12,221,775
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year	6	10,767,879	13,083,714

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the Lesotho Companies Act of 2011. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for investment property at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Lesotho Maloti.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainity

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the current and subsequent financial years. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimates of fair value of investment property

In making its judgement, the Company considers information from a variety of sources, including;

- current yields being achieved in an active market for retail properties as well as condition and location of each property; and
- discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts and (where possible) from external evidence such as current market rents for similar properties in the same location and conditions, and using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows. Additional adjustments are included for tenant risk and building factors, plus account is taken of vacancies, rental reversions to market, property costs, tenant installations, inflation, expenses and capital expenditure.

Significant assumption for the estimate of fair values

The fair values of investment properties are determined using a discounted cash flow valuation. The assumptions used are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The significant assumptions underlying the estimates of fair values are those related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected future market rentals; vacancy periods; tenant risk; capital expenditure and maintenance requirements; specific building factors and appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared to actual market yield data, and actual transactions by the Company and those reported by the market. The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of current market rentals for similar properties in the same location and condition.

Impairment of trade receivables

A provision for the impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of each trade receivable. The provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount less any security held and the expected amount to be recovered from the trade receivable.

1.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with IFRS and interpretations for year-ends commencing on or after 1 April 2016. All amounts are shown in Lesotho Maloti unless otherwise stated.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

Presentation of financial statements continued...

IFRS comprise International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and Interpretations originated by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC). The standards referred to are set by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historic cost basis, except for the following; carried at fair value:

- Investment property;
- Derivative financial instruments; and
- Financial instruments held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Historic cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

1.3 Investment property

Investment properties are properties that are held for purposes of earning rental income and for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially valued at cost, including transaction costs and subsequently at fair value based on a valuation performed by a valuer at year-end, using the open market value basis for existing use. The valuation is based on the percentage holding in each investment property. The straight line operating lease adjustment prepayment or accrual is disclosed separately as an asset or liability and is included in the determination of the fair value of the investment property.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to the investment in property is capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits from use of an asset will increase. All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Investment properties under construction

Investment properties under construction are initially recognised as part of property and equipment, and classified as capital work in progress. They are valued at cost until they are brought into commercial operation, where after they are transferred to investment properties and valued at fair value. These are not depreciated. Land is accounted for as an investment property from the date of acquisition.

Gains and losses

The net gains and losses from fair value adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they are disposed of or when the investment is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

Gains and losses on the disposal of investments in property are credited/(charged) to income. The gains and losses are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property.

1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is initially recognised at cost. The cost of plant and equipment includes amounts incurred initially to acquire an item of plant and equipment, and amounts incurred subsequently to add to, or replace, part of an asset. Replacement costs include the cost of major inspections. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. Day-to-day servicing costs, such as labour and consumables, are expensed in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

Presentation of financial statements continued...

Depreciation is provided on all plant and equipment to write-down the cost, less residual value, using the reducing balance method over their estimated useful lives, which equates with the following annual rates :

Plant and equipment 20%
Furniture and fittings 10% - 15%
Other equipment 10% - 15%

The residual values and useful lives of all items of plant and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if necessary, at each reporting date. Depreciation is charged to profit and loss. Gains or losses on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of the asset. The net amount is included in profit and loss for the period.

1.5 Development assets

Development assets, which comprise intangible assets and start-up costs relating to, but incurred prior to the commencement of related income generating business activities, are initially stated at cost.

Development assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on all development assets to write-down the cost using the reducing balance method at an annual rate of 20%.

1.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful live is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash flows have been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

1.7 Financial instruments

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus in the case of all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition. Purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

Presentation of financial statements continued...

Financial liabilities and equity instruments, issued by the company, are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when:

- The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire; or
- The company transfers the financial assets, including substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or has expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of thereof) extinguished or transferred to another party and consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments made by the Company are classified as either held at fair value through profit or loss or available- forsale, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current market prices. Since actual market prices are available in determining fair values, no significant estimates or valuation models are applied in determining the fair value of quoted financial instruments.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. Management determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two components: those held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer's margin, or security is included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists or if so designated by management at inception as held at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception are those that are:

- held to match liabilities that are linked to the changes in fair value of these assets. The designation of these assets at fair value through profit or loss eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as "an accounting mismatch") that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or
- managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. Information about these financial assets is provided internally on a fair value basis to the company's key management personnel. The company's investment strategy is to invest in equity and debt securities, and to evaluate them with reference to their fair values. Assets that are part of these portfolios are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. These arise when the Company provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

Available for use

Available-for-use investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, generally being their issue proceeds net of transaction costs incurred. Financial liabilities are subsequently stated at amortised cost and interest is recognised over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

The Company classifies certain liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, mainly to match the accounting classification of assets with similar risks. Such liabilities are accounted for at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Gains and losses

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Interest, calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the company's right to receive payment is established.

Effective interest method

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate) a shorter period to the net carrying amount of initial recognition.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or, realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.8 Income Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax comprises tax payable calculated on the basis of expected taxable income for the reporting period, using tax rates enacted at the end of reporting period, any adjustment of tax payable for previous periods.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their corresponding tax bases (known as temporary differences). Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to increase taxable profit in the future. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce taxable profit in the future, and any unused tax losses or tax credits. Deferred tax assets are measured at the highest amount that, on the basis of current or estimated future taxable profit, is more likely than not to be recovered.

The net carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date, and is adjusted to reflect the current assessment of future taxable profits. Any adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which the deferred tax asset will be realised, or the deferred tax liability will be settled, on the basis of tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

1.9 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the company. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rights to use held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the company at the fair value of the leased property (or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments) at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of lease obligation so as to achieve a consistent rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are deducted in measuring profit or loss. Assets held under finance leases are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated and assessed for impairment losses in the same way as owned assets.

Rentals receivable/payable under operating leases are credited/charged to profit or loss on a complying systematic basis over the term of the relevant lease.

1.10 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the assets (a 'loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed asset, whether significant or not, it then includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in the collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of allowance account and the amount of the loss recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related provision for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after all necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the provision for loan impairment in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had an impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Accounting Policies

Assets carried at fair value

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments, classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not subsequently reversed through the profit or loss. However, if in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

1.11 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recorded at the proceeds received net of incremental external costs directly attributable to the issue.

1.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors' estimate of the expenditure required to settle that obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

1.13 Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business net of VAT and other related sales taxes.

Fee income

Fee income comprises administration fees, asset management fees, development fees and excludes Valued Added Tax. Administration fees, asset management fees and development fees are recognised over the period for which the services are rendered, in accordance with substance of the relevant agreements.

Investment income

Investment income comprises realised and unrealised gains on investments, interest income and dividend income.

Investment income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

1.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and other short term, highly liquid, investments that are convertible to known amounts of cash which are subject to insignificant risk or changes in values, all of which are available for use by the Company unless otherwise stated. In the statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are included in current liabilities.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in M	2023	2022
2. Investment property		
Pioneer Shopping Mall		
Land and buildings - Phase 1, 2 & 3		
Opening balance	361,421,951	352,844,013
Capitalised expenditure	33,588	1,283,767
Change in fair value (to current market valuation)	28,990,497	7,294,171
Total carrying amount	390,446,036	361,421,951

Phase 1 is situated on plot no. 12284-589 Maseru Urban Area held under a Land Act 1979 lease commencing on 21 May 2008 and expiring 60 years thereafter. The lease is encumbered by a mortgage bond for M100 million issued in favour of Nedbank Lesotho Ltd as security for the long term loan disclosed under note 10.

Phase 2 is situated on plot no. 12284-668 Maseru Urban Area held under a Land Act 2010 lease commencing on 2 February 2012 and expiring 60 years therefore after. The lease is encumbered by mortgage bonds totalling M90.1 million issued in favour of Nedbank Lesotho as security for the long-term loan disclosed under note 10.

Phase 3 is situated on land held under Phases 1 and 2, as detailed above.

3. Property, plant and equipment

3.1 Balances for the year

Balance at 31 March 2023	At cost	depreciation	amount
Plant and Equipment	17,579,160	(14,425,197)	3,153,963
Motor vehicles	346,392	(17,160)	329,232
Fixtures and fittings	850,292	(563,769)	286,523
Office equipment	2,569,079	(1,374,290)	1,194,789
	21,344,923	(16,380,416)	4,964,507
Balance at 31 March 2022	At cost	Accumulated depreciation	Carrying amount
Balance at 31 March 2022 Plant and Equipment	At cost 17,424,944		, ,
		depreciation	amount
Plant and Equipment	17,424,944	depreciation (13,646,895)	3,778,049

Accumulated

Commina

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in M 2023 2022

Property, plant and equipment continued...

3.2 Movements for the year

Movements for year ended 31 March 2023	amount at 1 April 2022	trom acquisitions	Depreciation	increase (decrease)	amount at 31 March 2023
Plant and Equipment	3,778,049	154,216	(778,302)	-	3,153,963
Motor vehicles	-	346,391	(17,160)	*	329,232
Fixtures and fittings	238,820	94,224	(46,521)	-	286,523
Office equipment	902,383	449,697	(157,291)	ā	1,194,789
	4,919,252	1,044,528	(999,273)	-	4,964,507
Movements for year ended 31 March 2022	Carrying amount at 1 April 2021	Additions from acquisitions	Depreciation	Revaluation increase (decrease)	Carrying amount at 31 March 2022
Plant and Equipment	2,155,987	2,240,917	(618,855)	=	3,778,049

200,035

2,440,952

Additions

Carrying

280,964

838,934

3,275,885

Revaluation

(42, 144)

(136,586)

(797,585)

Carrying

238,820

902,383

4,919,252

4. Developments assets

Fixtures and fittings

Office equipment

		Accumulated		
<u>2023</u>	Cost	amortisation	Net	Net
Intangible assets and start-up costs	-			
Pioneer Shopping Mall - Phase 1	15,540,152	14,709,236	830,916	
Pioneer Shopping Mall - Phase 2	15,006,990	13,507,520	1,499,470	
Pioneer Shopping Mall - Phase 3	5,967,067	4,080,337	1,886,730	
Pioneer Shopping Mall - Phase 4	77,587	2,818	74,769	
Totals	36,591,796	32,299,911	4,291,885	
		Accumulated		
<u>2022</u>	Cost	amortisation		
Intangible assets and start-up costs	(
Pioneer Shopping Mall - Phase 1	15,540,152	14,501,507		1,038,645
Pioneer Shopping Mall - Phase 2	15,006,990	13,132,653		1,874,337
Pioneer Shopping Mall - Phase 3	5,967,067	3,608,654		2,358,413
Totals	36,514,209	31,242,814	=	5,271,395

5. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables comprise:

Property rental debtors	924,178	889,996
Deposits	80,000	80,000
Prepayments	88,662	99,486
Withholding tax	35,384	3#3
Trade and other receivables	1,128,224	1,069,482

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the i manetal statements		
Figures in M	2023	2022
6. Cash and cash equivalents		
Cash and cash equivalents included in current assets compris	es:	
Nedbank Current Account	71,271	860,082
Nedbank Disbursements Account	203,584	144,757
Nedbank Interest Bearing Account	10,493,024	12,078,875
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end	10,767,879	13,083,714
7. Share capital		
Authorised Share capital		
1 000 000 shares of M0.10 each	100 000	100 000
Issued share capital		
287,719 (2022: 287,719) shares of M0.10 each		28,772
8. Share premium		
Premium of M175 per share on 43 478 shares	7,608,650	7,608,650
Premium of M200 per share on 47 897 shares	9,579,400	9,579,400
Premium of M250 per share on 12 068 shares	3,017,000	3,017,000
Premium of M300 per share on 13 394 shares	4,018,200	4,018,200
Total share premium	24,223,250	24,223,250
9. Debentures		
Balance at the beginning of the year	115,058,828	115,058,828
Balance at the end of the year	115,058,828	115,058,828

Debenture funding is regarded as equity, since shareholders are required to pay the debenture amounts when they take-up shares in the company, and the amount of each debenture is computed based on the nominal value of the shares taken-up (i.e. M399.90 debenture for every one 10 Lisente share). Each combination of one share and related debenture funding is referred to as "linked unit".

The terms and conditions under which the debentures were issued and are now held are set-out in a formal document titled "Debenture -Terms and Conditions" that was issued by the Company on 25 February 2012. This document contains, inter alia, provisions relating to the payment of interest and (potential long-term) redemption of capital in respect of such debentures.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in M		2023	2022
10. Long-term loans			
Long-term loans comprise:			
Balance at the beginning of the year		125,466,297	137,523,233
Add: Prior year adjustments	Note A	958,144	-
Interest charges		10,654,655	10,499,899
Repayments		(21,891,039)	(22,556,835)
Balance at the end of the year		115,188,057	125,466,297
Less: Repayable by 31 March 2024		(11,865,542)	(11,779,429)

The Company has entered into a loan agreement with its bankers as part of the financing arrangements for the development of the Pioneer Shopping Mall. The loan is secured as disclosed in note 2 above; and bears interest at a prime linked rate (currently 7.75% p.a.) The current facility expires on 1 September 2026.

103,322,515

113,686,868

Note A

Long-term portion

In the prior year, the loan balance was understated by M958,144. This has been corrected in the current year as shown above.

11. Deferred tax

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

29,760,824	22,468,592
29,760,824	22,468,592
(508)	903,445
1,159,794	1,193,422
1,173,889	1,140,079
18,906,323	8,275,199
724,443	1,682,587
1,539,845	1,704,651
23,503,786	14,899,383
45,255,088	42,089,435
10,271,765	9,391,652
1,353,777	760,626
56,880,631	52,241,713
	(508) 1,159,794 1,173,889 18,906,323 724,443 1,539,845 23,503,786 45,255,088 10,271,765 1,353,777

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in M	2023	2022
14. Operating expenses		
Operating expenses comprise the following:		
Amortisation of developments assets	1,057,097	1,317,852
Audit fees	75,384	70,075
Depreciation	999,273	797,585
Directors fees and remuneration	435,000	348,000
Other operating expenses	14,165,034	12,644,930
Rent and rates	1,851,430	1,906,430
Staff costs	9,686,694	8,790,415
Total operating expenses	28,269,912	25,875,287
5. Finance charges		
Finance charges comprise the following:		
Debenture Interest	18,462,800	11,019,688
Interest on Long-Term Loans	10,654,655	10,499,899
Total finance charges	29,117,455	21,519,587
6. Income tax expense Lesotho Tax		
Current	(162,548)	1,282,024
Deferred Tax Movement	7,292,232	(70,315)
Total charge	7,129,684	1,211,709
Deferred		
Due to timing differences	7,292,232	(70,315)
Total deferred tax (charge)/ recoupment	7,292,232	(70,315)
Reconciliation of tax rate	% age	% age
Tax charge as a percentage of income	32.07	26.40
Effect of disallowed expenditure	(7.07)	(1.40)
Lesotho corporate income tax rate	25.00	25.00
7. IFRS fair value adjustment		
Unrealised gain on property revaluation	28,990,497	7,294,170
Related deferred tax expense	(7,247,624)	(1,823,542)
Net fair value adjustment	21,742,873	5,470,628

Pioneer Shopping Mall was valued at M393,600,000 by independent valuers, Real Insight (which includes both the land and the buildings per note 2, and the plant and equipment fitted therein per note 3). This value was adopted for accounting purposes as at 31 March 2023, resulting in the above unrealised gain and related deferred tax charge.

18. Accounting for rental income

The Company is currently not applying the rental lease income straightlining provisions as required by IFRS 16. However, due to the relatively short-term nature of such leases (typically no more than three years), such non-compliance has no significant impact on the reported financial results of the Company.

(Registration Number I2007/861)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in M 2023 2022

19. Risk management

19.1 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the availability (or not) of funds to cover future commitments. The Company manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. Cash flow forecasts are also prepared and borrowing facilities monitored as part of this monitoring process.

19.2 Interest rate risk

The Company does not limit risk in respect of interest rate changes. Accordingly, interest rate fluctuations will directly impact on the company's results. At the financial year-end, however, there were no significant balances that were exposed to interest rate fluctuations, except for the Nedbank loan disclosed under note 10 above.

19.3 Credit risk

Credit risk relates to bank balances and trade receivables. The Company only deposits funds with major banks with high quality credit standing. The receivables comprise a relatively small number of customers. Management evaluates the credit standing of customers as well as the recoverability of individual debtor balances on an ongoing basis.

19.4 Currency risk

All of the Company's day to day financial transactions are denominated in either Lesotho Maloti or South African Rand (whose exchange rate is at par with Lesotho Maloti). Hence, the Company does not usually incur any credit risk, and no such risk existed at financial year-end.

20. Going Concern

The Directors believe that the Company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The Directors are not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation which may affect the Company.

21. Events after the reporting period

The Directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.

Moruo Developments Limited (Registration Number I2007/861)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Detailed Income Statement

Figures in M	2023	2022
Personne		_
Revenue	4E 2EE 000	42 000 425
Property rental	45,255,088	42,089,435
Property tenant cost recoveries Sundry income	10,271,765	9,391,652 760,626
Total revenue	1,353,777 56,880,631	52,241,713
Total revenue	30,000,031	32,241,713
Expenses		
Accounting Fees	34,398	97,748
Advertising and promotions	196,937	126,801
Amortisation of development assets	1,057,097	1,317,852
Audit Fees	75,384	70,075
Bank charges	119,334	105,237
Board & Shareholder Costs	114,583	40,659
Cleaning and sanitising	902,869	876,955
Computer expenses	264,869	269,488
Consultancy and professional fees	864,694	748,137
Depreciation	999,273	797,585
Directors fees and remuneration	435,000	348,000
Electricity and water	6,612,830	5,881,570
Insurance	1,038,623	1,023,517
Interest expense: debentures	18,462,800	11,019,688
Interest expense: other	10,654,655	10,499,899
Office & welfare costs	786,135	16,436
Printing and stationery	38,217	31,010
Refuse removal	371,882	352,998
Rent and rates	1,851,430	1,906,430
Repairs and maintenance	1,349,638	2,052,294
Salaries and wages	9,686,694	8,790,415
Security	174,345	92,316
Sundry expenses	1,065	3,500
Telephone and postage	196,392	184,889
Training	99,042	59,922
Transport	436,514	406,706
Uniforms and Protective Clothing	562,667	274,747
Total expenses	57,387,367	47,394,874
Operating profit for the year	(506,736)	4,846,839